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  [10.03 am] 

 

SJH:   Yes, thank you. Ms Robinson, you are for the Commodore Hotel and the 

University of Canterbury? 

 5 

MS ROBINSON:   Yes, sir. 

 

SJH:   Ms MacLean you are for? 

 

MS MacLEAN:   Sir, I am here on behalf of Canterbury Aggregate Producers 10 

Group and Isaac Conservation Wildlife Trust, sir. 

 

SJH:   Thank you. Ms Appleyard, you are for the Airport, Catholic Diocese, 

Lyttelton Port, Waterloo Park, Pratt and Whitney Air New Zealand 

Services and Pacific Park Investments. 15 

 

MS APPLEYARD:   Yes, sir. 

 

SJH:   You’re not seen to be on my list, you snuck in late? 

 20 

MS MEHLHOPT:   Yes, sir. Ms Mehlhopt for the Canterbury Regional 

Council and the joint further submission of the Canterbury Regional 

Council. 

 

SJH:   Sorry, the second one was? 25 

 

MS MEHLHOPT:   There’s a joint further submission for the Canterbury 

Regional Council. 

 

SJH:   So you’re just representing the Canterbury Regional Council? 30 

 

MS MEHLHOPT:   And also the Waimakariri District Council, Selwyn 

District Council and Ngāi Tahu as a joint further submission in relation 

to the airport noise contours. 

 35 

SJH:   Thank you. Ms Walsh you’re for Ngāi Tahu Properties, Progressive 

Enterprise and Te Runanga o Ngāi Tahu? 

 

MS WALSH:   Yes, sir. 

 40 

SJH:   Is there any overlap with Ms Mehlhopt? 

 

MS WALSH:   No, sir. 

 

  [10.05 am] 45 
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SJH:   All right. Ms Crawford, another one I don’t have – maybe I do? 

 

MS CRAWFORD:  Sir, I am appearing for Ms Foote, planner who appeared 

yesterday for iSite and Go Media Limited in relation to this Chapter, 

also Silver Fern Farms and Kennaway. 5 

 

SJH:   Thank you. Ms Marks, you are for the Carter Group and MPT Limited? 

 

MS MARKS:   Yes, sir.  

 10 

SJH:   Thank you, is the next person a lawyer? 

 

MR HUDSPITH:   Yes, your Honour, Mr Hudspith for Air New Zealand, with 

me today are Mr Morgan and Mr Wilkins. 

 15 

SJH:   Well, they should be at the back, not at counsel’s table for future 

reference. They can stay there now. 

 

 Mr Kissling, you are for? 

 20 

PROFESSOR KISSLING:  Christopher Kissling, Hands Off Hagley. 

 

SJH:   Thank you. Anyone else in that row that is here for a submitter? 

 

 All right, the other row please? Just give your submitter number and 25 

your name, and if it’s an organisation, the name of the organisation you 

represent. 

 

MR MARRA:  Mike Marra, I am a lay submitter, 2054. 

 30 

SJH:  Thank you. 

 

MR LAWRY:   Dave Lawry, 2154. 

 

SJH:   Thank you. 35 

 

MR GAMBLE:   Bruce Gamble, 2489. 

 

SJH:   Thank you. 

 40 

MR CASE:   Michael Case, Case Family, 3280. 

 

SJH:  Thank you. 

 

MS DINGWALL:   Hands Off Hagley. 45 
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SJH:   We have already recorded Hands Off Hagley, have we not? 

 

MS DINGWALL:   Yes, we have, Mr Kissling wasn’t counsel, he’s - - - 

 

SJH:   No, I understand that. 5 

 

MS DINGWALL:   Okay, good. Our number is 2302 and 2747 is a further. 

 

SJH:   Thank you. 

 10 

MR VENEMA:   Gerrit Venema, 2091, layperson submitter.  

 

SJH:  Ms McLeod? 

 

MS McLEOD:   Ainsley McLeod for Transpower, 3494. 15 

 

SJH:   Thank you. 

 

MR MILLAR:   Darryl Millar for Christchurch Polytechnic, 2969, 3277. 

 20 

SJH:   Thank you. 

 

MR JOLL:   Tim Joll for Christ’s College, 2019, Top Maple Investments, 

2341, Bunnings Limited, 2364, and Kiwi Property Holdings Limited, 

2372. 25 

 

MS PAYNE:   Vanessa Payne, 2191. 

 

SJH:   That’s a personal submission? 

 30 

MS PAYNE:   Yes, that’s personal. 

 

SJH:   Yes.  

 

MR SUGRUE:   John Sugrue, submitter 2567. 35 

 

SJH:  Thank you. 

 

MR MORA:   Good morning, Mike Mora, Riccarton Wigram Community 

Board, 2542 and 2363, and Riccarton Bush Trust, 3266 and further 40 

submission 5027, sir. 

 

SJH:   Thank you, Mr Mora. 

 

MR WARD:   Goods morning, sir, John Ward, Riccarton Bush Trust, 3266 and 45 

further submission 5027. 
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SJH:  Thank you. 

 

MR DUNCAN:   Simon Duncan, Garden City Helicopters, and submitter 

number 2187. 5 

 

SJH:   Thank you. 

 

MR BALLANTYNE:   Keith Ballantyne, Papanui Club, submitter 3998. 

 10 

SJH:   Thank you. 

 

MS BLAIR:  Karen Blair for the Oil Companies, BP, Z Energy and Mobil, 

submitter 2185. 

 15 

SJH:   Thank you.  

 

MS McGETTIGAN:   Geraldine McGettigan, Canterbury District Health 

Board, submitter number 3696. 

 20 

SJH:   Thank you.  

 

  [10.10 am] 

 

MS McGETTIGAN:   Anybody else along here?  No.  That is all, sir. 25 

 

SJH:   Thank you.  Could I just introduce to submitters Mr Ball who is the 

Friend of Submitter.  He is in a position to give you assistance but not 

give you legal or planning advice but he can assist you with the 

process, the filing of the documents, the form the documents take, how 30 

to set them out, questions of cross-examination, the difference between 

evidence and submission and matters of that sort.  He will be available 

to you if you wish to consult him immediately after the hearing but the 

phone number to contact the Friend of Submitter is also on the website. 

 35 

 The first thing we are going to address is the Statement of Issues which 

is attached to the memorandum of the Christchurch City Council filed 

on 22 October and posted online.  So the first thing, Ms Scott, is there 

any changes you wish to make? 

 40 

MS SCOTT:   Sir, if I may just make two minor changes. 

 

SJH:   Just pause a moment.  Perhaps I should explain at this stage to lay 

submitters who have not been at prior hearings, the Statement of Issues 

is a document we have filed for every chapter.  It sets out the issues that 45 

the Council have distilled from the submissions, and further 
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submissions that they believe the Panel will need to hear evidence on 

and determine at the hearing.  Thank you. 

 

MS SCOTT:   Thank you, sir.  On page 42, this is under the aircraft protection 

section. In 6K I just have the rule references there to make that issue 5 

more specific, if I could add those please. 

 

SJH:   Yes. 

 

MS SCOTT:   Rule 6.7.2.2.3.3, and that is a restricted discretionary rule, and 10 

the second one is 6.7.2.2.3.4, and that is the discretionary activity rule.   

 

 And then the second change is in issue 6L directly below.  If we could 

add the words at the end of that issue “, in order to reduce bird strike 

risk”.  So that will read “Is it practical to control intermittent ponding in 15 

quarries, in order to reduce bird strike risk”. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Ms Scott, just to go back to page 41 and issue 6G, and just 

reading that issue “Should bird strike risk to aircraft be considered in 

relation to both the 3 kilometre area and an 8 kilometre area or only the 20 

latter”, is that intended or should it say “only the former”? 

 

MS SCOTT:   On the former, sir, thank you for that correction.  They are all 

the corrections, sir.  Thank you. 

 25 

SJH:   Thank you.  Mr Carranceja? 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Yes, thank you, sir.  The Crown has no amendments or 

additions to the Statement of Issues, but it would like to see two 

additional definitions inserted, sir.  The first definition is “temporary 30 

military training activities” and the second definition, sir, is “works for 

the purpose of earthquake recovery” and that is all, sir.  Thank you. 

 

SJH:   Thank you.  Is there any objection to that, Ms Scott? 

 35 

MS SCOTT:   No, sir. 

 

SJH:   Well, that can be added in, thank you.  Do any counsel have any issues 

with the Statement of Issues?  Ms Walsh? 

 40 

MS WALSH:   Yes, sir, these have been agreed with the Council, TRONT 

seeks the addition of two. 

 

SJH:   All right, do you have it? 

 45 
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MS WALSH:   No, I don’t need to go through those and three issues for 

Progressive. 

 

SJH:   Are they already included or? 

 5 

MS WALSH:   They are not included but they have been agreed with my 

friend. 

 

SJH:   But you were helpful yesterday in filing a written copy for the Panel, 

you don’t have that today? 10 

 

MS WALSH:   I can do so, sir. 

 

SJH:   If you would lodge that, thank you. 

 15 

MS WALSH:   No problem. 

 

SJH:   Any other counsel have any comments on the Statement of Issues?  Do 

any submitters have comments or questions in relation to the Statement 

of Issues?  Yes? 20 

 

MR VENEMA:   Sir, on page 17, Issue No 1P, the provisions relating to engine 

testing noise mitigation appropriate. 

 

SJH:   Sorry page? 25 

 

MR VENEMA:   Page 17 I believe. 

 

SJH:   Yes. 

 30 

MR VENEMA:   Issue No 1P. 

 

SJH:   P? 

 

MR VENEMA:   Yes. 35 

 

SJH:   It may be printed differently; it is on our page 16.  Anyway yes? 

 

MR VENEMA:   It could be 16, Issue 1P and item B, there it states, “Are there 

other noise mitigation measures which could be practically be adopted 40 

by Christchurch International Airport and Air New Zealand 

Engineering Services and required in the RDP or CIAL’s Noise 

Management Plan to reduce night time noise nuisance for residents”.  I 

would like to see the “night time” removed.  The engine running noise 

can be an issue for some residents and institutions during the day too 45 

and mitigation should embrace that.   
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  [10.15 am] 

 

SJH:   Okay. 

 5 

MR VENEMA:   Thank you.  

 

SJH:   I take it there would be no objection to expanding it, Ms Appleyard and 

Ms Scott? 

 10 

MS SCOTT:   No objection, sir. 

 

SJH:   All right we will delete “night time”.  Thank you.  Any other submitters 

raise any matters?  All right, thank you. 

 15 

 The Statement of Issues with necessary amendments can be filed by 

close of business tomorrow, Ms Scott, and will then be posted online so 

that everyone will have it available to them? 

 

MS SCOTT:   Yes, we can do that, sir. 20 

 

SJH:   Thank you.  Predicted dates for mediation are 21 and 22 January.  Does 

anyone have any issue with those dates for mediation to be entered 

into, which will obviously be split into the different elements of what is 

before us? 25 

 

 All right, just a reminder if you are representing an organisation when 

you attend mediation you need to be empowered to make decisions that 

bind that organisation, that is quite critical.   

 30 

 We also mention that we do encourage informal mediation between the 

parties, and that can be entered into directly between parties or also 

involving where relevant any other submitters, and particularly the 

Council and potentially the Crown.   

 35 

 Before we go on to expert conferencing there are a couple of matters 

that have been raised in relation to that, and concerns expressed around 

noise by a number of submitters, Ms Scott.  I guess the first one is to 

note that the Council proposes to use the same firm as the Airport? 

 40 

MS SCOTT:   Yes, I have been discussing that this morning.  Mr Camp has 

advised the Council on noise issues at the airport for some time. 

 

SJH:   And Mr Day has advised the Airport for some time. 

 45 
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MS SCOTT:   He has.  We are considering not calling Mr Camp for the 

Council, also because of his expertise in terms of the airport noise 

issues, and engaging someone in terms of qualifications. 

 

SJH:   Well, it is not considering, we really need a call on that today and the 5 

obvious potential conflict should have been considered long ago. 

 

MS SCOTT:   Yes, no it has been, sir, and we have taken into account the 

messages received during the course of these hearings in terms of 

managing conflicts, and the experts are complying with the Code of 10 

Conduct when they give their evidence.  I will progress those 

discussions with Council and hopefully - - - 

 

SJH:   As you well know, conflict is about appearance as much as the reality, it 

is like bias.   15 

 

MS SCOTT:   Yes, sir.  At this point in time I am not in a position to advise 

you of who the Council’s witness will be. 

 

SJH:   When will you be in a position to advise us? 20 

 

MS SCOTT:   I will endeavour to do that by the end of the day or perhaps 

when I file the - - - 

 

SJH:   Because we need to know because the Panel will have to consider 25 

requiring a peer review of that, if that is the course you are going to 

adopt and stick with that witness, we may have to consider calling 

somebody to assist the Panel as an independent expert, and that is not 

something we wish to get into if that conflict issue is removed. 

 30 

MS SCOTT:   Okay, yes, sir.  If we could come back to you by 5.00 pm today. 

 

SJH:   All right.  Well, it involves you too, Ms Appleyard, have you got 

anything to submit on? 

 35 

MS APPLEYARD:   Well, it is an issue for the Council. 

 

SJH:   Well, it is, I know that, I understand. 

 

MS APPLEYARD:   The only comment that I would make is Mr Day, you 40 

know he is an independent expert, and I am not saying in relation to 

this hearing, I hear what is said about appearances, but at previous 

hearings joint cases have actually been presented by CCC, ECan and 

CIAL using Mr Day as the witness. 

 45 

SJH:   I understand that. 
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MS APPLEYARD:   He has been to date. 

 

SJH:   This is not a joint witness though. 

 5 

MS APPLEYARD:   Well, I don’t know that - - - 

 

SJH:   This is two separate witnesses. 

 

MS APPLEYARD:   I don’t know. 10 

 

SJH:   Well, that is the indication we have at the moment.  If it is a joint 

witness it is a different matter because then you are saying your case is 

exactly the same. 

 15 

MS APPLEYARD:   Yes. 

 

SJH:   But the appearance at the moment is that it is a separate expert from 

within the same firm, which you will appreciate why the Panel has 

concerns? 20 

 

  [10.20 am] 

 

MS APPLEYARD:   Yes, I understand that and I can’t solve that. 

 25 

SJH:   No, all right, thank you. Now that may raise some issues with submitters 

who have raised this matter.  Do any submitters want to address us in 

relation to that, given the indication that their counsel may well be 

calling an expert from a different firm? 

 30 

MR LAWRY:   Dave Lawry, sir, your Honour.  The only situation I am 

(INDISTINCT 0.35) is a conflict of interest issue, which you are 

obviously aware of, or have a perception of, and that relates also to 

whether or not this facility is organised to hear another expert witness 

from afar, and this witness was involved in the very early delivery of - - 35 

- 

 

SJH:   Yes, we are so organised Mr Lawry, we have done other witnesses by 

video link. 

 40 

MR LAWRY:   Thank you for that then, sir. 

 

SJH:   And in fact some of the mediation and expert conferencing has taken 

place with experts as far afield as the United Kingdom, so if you wish 

to call – we will come to the witnesses you were going to call, but if 45 

you wish to call someone from afar that cannot attend New Zealand 
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you can make an application for that to be done by video link and the 

secretariat will facilitate it. 

 

MR LAWRY:   Thank you, sir. 

 5 

SJH:   Any other submitters got any queries?  All right, well we will get that 

notification as soon as you are able.  Now there is one other issue, 

Mr Marra, you have filed a document dated 21 October relating to your 

expertise.  As I read it you are an expert on matters pertaining to 

engineering of aircraft engines but you are not a sound expert.  Would 10 

that be a fair comment? 

 

MR MARRA:   That is correct, your Honour. 

 

SJH:   Well this is very much a matter to be tested at hearing, but it is also a 15 

matter for whoever is conducting the expert conferencing to ascertain 

and prove that expertise.  So does anybody involved here now take 

issues with Mr Marra’s expertise in relation to engineering matters of 

an engine, relating to aircraft engines, not sound?  Well as such - - - 

 20 

MR HUDSPITH:   Sorry, Your Honour, just to record we haven’t seen that 

document so we have to reserve our position on that. We can 

endeavour to review it and notify the Panel. 

 

SJH:   Was this not posted online?  It was posted online, you have had access 25 

to it. 

 

MS APPLEYARD:   I don’t have a difficulty with Mr Marra’s expertise, but 

we are not calling an expert in this field so - - - 

 30 

SJH:   I am not sure that anyone else is either at the moment. 

 

MS APPLEYARD:   - - - so there is no-one for him to conference with is my - 

- - 

 35 

MR HUDSPITH:   No objection, your Honour. 

 

SJH:   All right, thank you.  All right, well we just don’t know if anyone else 

will be calling evidence in your area of expertise or not, Mr Marra.  I 

will run through that at the moment, just now and then if there are 40 

others then you can conference with them at the expert conferencing. 

 

MR MARRA:   Thank you, your Honour. 

 

SJH:   Now, Ms Scott, your witnesses. 45 
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MS SCOTT:   Sir, they are listed in the memorandum at paragraph 17.   

 

SJH:   Yes. 

 

MS SCOTT:   Would you like me to take you through them? 5 

 

SJH:   Not really, they are posted online, the only one to clarify is that 17.1A of 

course. 

 

MS SCOTT:   Yes, sir, and we will do that. 10 

 

SJH:   All right, thank you.  Mr Carranceja? 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:  Yes, thank you, sir.  The Crown intends to call a 

maximum of 16 witnesses and, sir, again as per usual the Crown will 15 

endeavour to mediate to reduce these witnesses, sir.  But at the present 

time the Crown intends to call a general planner to cover most of the 

general matters, sir; a noise expert; an operational works witness; a 

witness regarding the sale of alcohol, sir; and an urban designer. 

 20 

 For the New Zealand Transport Agency an operational witness, a 

traffic expert and a planner; and I will just give an indication now, sir, 

it is the intention for NZTA to be represented with the Crown as per the 

Transport hearing that occurred, sir. 

 25 

  [10.25 am] 

 

SJH:   As you did previously. 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Yes, sir. 30 

 

SJH:   Thank you. 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   For the New Zealand Fire Service – and again we are 

hoping to resolve matters, sir – an operational expert and a planner.  35 

For the New Zealand Defence Force, sir, a military operations witness, 

a noise expert and a planner. 

 

 For the Department of Conservation, sir, a freshwater ecologist and a 

planner.  For the Ministry of Education, an operational witness.  And 40 

that is all, thank you. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Mr Carranceja, just on the noise matter. 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Yes, sir. 45 
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JUDGE HASSAN:   Your first reference to noise was ahead of referring to the 

Transport Agency’s case. 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Yes, sir. 

 5 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Is the brief of that expert to be around just the roading 

noise issues or does it also encompass the airport noise? 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:  That one will encompass not airport per se, sir.  

Ventilation and New Zealand Fire Service noise issues and NZTA. 10 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes, so it is pertaining to the issues around the highway 

and separation and reverse sensitivity, those topics? 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Yes, sir.  But we are having a separate noise expert at 15 

this stage - - -  

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   On that - - - 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Yes, sir. 20 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   All right.  No I just wanted to get that clear. 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Thank you, sir. 

 25 

SJH:   Thank you.  Ms Robinson. 

 

MS ROBINSON:   Thank you, sir.  The Commodore Airport Hotel will be 

calling a planner and also an urban design expert to (INDISTINCT 

1.26) our discussion with Council.  And the University of Canterbury 30 

will be calling a planner, a noise expert and a UC representative will 

speak to that submission. 

 

SJH:   Thank you.  Ms MacLean? 

 35 

MS MACLEAN:   Thank you, sir.  Isaac Conservation Wildlife Trust will be 

calling four witnesses. There will be an acoustic expert, an 

ornithologist, a representative from the Trust and a planning expert.  

And in respect of Canterbury Aggregate Producers’ Group, sir, there 

will be three witnesses – an industry representative, an acoustic expert 40 

and planning witness. 

 

SJH:   Thank you.  Ms Appleyard? 

 

MS APPLEYARD:  Sir, in relation to the airport noise issues, the Airport will 45 

be calling an economist, acoustic split into two areas, one in relation to 
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modeling and the other in relation to assessment.  They will be calling 

Airways in relation to flight tracks – that is an expert but it is an expert 

employed by Airways.  They will be calling Airbiz which is a company 

who deals with airport planning in terms of capacity to put aircraft on 

the ground et cetera; a social expert and a planning witness.  5 

 

 In relation to bird strike there will be an ornithologist, there is a risk 

person from Australia who deals with the management of bird strike 

risk and the response to that, and a planner. 

 10 

 In respect of other parties, they will all be calling a planning witness, 

and Waterloo Park will also be calling an acoustics expert. 

 

SJH:   Thank you.  Ms Mehlhopt? 

 15 

MS MELHOPT:   Yes, sir, likely to be planning evidence in relation to the 

50 dBA airport noise contour. 

 

SJH:   Thank you.  Ms Walsh? 

 20 

MS WALSH:   Sir, on behalf of TRONT in relation to water body setbacks, 

they will be calling a planner, an ecologist, a hydrologist and a cultural 

witness.  On behalf of Ngai Tahu Property Limited in relation to bird 

strike issues, they will be calling a planner, a civil engineer and 

potentially an ecologist with ornithological expertise. 25 

 

 On behalf of Progressive in relation to signage, outdoor lighting and 

glare issues, a planner and possibly an urban designer and a company 

representative. 

 30 

SJH:   I take it from your witness list yesterday that some of those witnesses 

may overlap with the witnesses in the Natural Heritage? 

 

MS WALSH:   Absolutely. 

 35 

SJH:   So this is just to be a cross referencing? 

 

MS WALSH:   Absolutely, sir. 

 

SJH:   Thanks.  Yes, Ms Crawford? 40 

 

MS CRAWFORD:   Thank you, sir.  For Kennaway dealing with waterway 

setbacks, potentially an ecologist and certainly a planner, Ms Aston.  

And Ms Aston also for Silver Fern Farms, similar issues raised.  

Unlikely to call a company witness, they have given evidence 45 
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previously in relation to that submitter.  And that is also to do with 

waterway setbacks and modified waterbodies.   

 

 ISite and Go Media are two separate submitters with overlapping 

interests dealing with signage.  At this stage the intention is to call a 5 

planner, Ms Foote.  And just while I am on my feet, sir, the indication 

around expert conferencing, I note your comment about the opportunity 

for informal discussions which is to be encouraged.  It may well be 

appropriate for expert conferencing between planners on the signage 

provisions.  Some of those issues relate to activity status and 10 

structuring of the provisions. 

 

SJH:   Thank you.  Ms Marks? 

 

MS MARKS:   Sir, at this stage Carter Group Limited and NPT Limited each 15 

intend to call a planner, but there is some overlap in their submissions 

so there is potential for a shared witness. 

 

SJH:   Thank you.  Mr Morgan? 

 20 

MR HUDSPITH:   It’s Mr Hudspith, your Honour.   

 

SJH:   Sorry. 

 

  [10.30 am] 25 

 

MR HUDSPITH:   Air New Zealand intends to call a planner, a noise expert 

and also an aviation expert, your Honour. 

 

SJH:   Sorry, I was just crossing names out here, could you just repeat that for 30 

me? 

 

MR HUDSPITH:   A planner, sir, an acoustic or noise expert, and also an 

aviation expert. 

 35 

SJH:   Thank you. Now, would submitters indicate the witnesses they intend to 

call, including lay witnesses at this stage? If we just start in the front of 

you, just run along with this table first. 

 

MR CASE:   Yes, my submission is related to the Case Family submission, it is 40 

tacked onto the end of it, it is concerning rural activities, using 

irrigation equipment at night and my counsel said, well, maybe the 

Council and I could get together and - - - 

 

SJH:   Is that Mr Hughes-Johnson? 45 
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MR CASE:   Mr Hughes-Johnson, yes, but he sent me along today on my own, 

and he said that maybe the Council and we could get together and 

discuss this matter because it is only a minor matter really. 

 

SJH:   All right, well, we will leave you and if it is not resolved you would be 5 

giving evidence yourself, would you? 

 

MR CASE:   That is right. 

 

SJH:   All right, thank you. 10 

 

MR CASE:   Thank you. 

 

MR CAMPBELL:   Bruce Campbell, I’m just a lay submitter and I would just 

be speaking on my own behalf. 15 

 

SJH:   As a submitter? 

 

MR CAMPBELL:   As a submitter. 

 20 

SJH:   Thank you. Mr Lawry? 

 

MR LAWRY:   Dave Lawry, there will be a noise expert, in relation to the 

airstrike a bird expert, and an investigative expert in relation to 

contextual background to how we have got to where we are. There is 25 

issue I have raised with you about that because I will be putting myself 

forward as an investigative expert, which I can show my credentials 

for, and I have asked some guidance around that, around also 

submitting.  

 30 

SJH:  Well, we will come to this and whether it is relevant evidence for this 

hearing or not in due course, Mr Lawry.  Mr Marra? 

 

MR MARRA:   Nothing further to add. 

 35 

SJH:   But are you intending to give evidence as an expert? 

 

MR MARRA:   Mike Marra and 2054, I’ll be giving evidence on my own 

behalf and further the issue that we have already discussed is pertinent 

to this point. 40 

 

SJH:   Thank you. 

 

MS DINGWALL:   Hands Off Hagley, we are intending to call an expert with 

regard to the temporary activities rule. 45 
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SJH:   What type of expert, a planner or? 

 

MS DINGWALL:   A traffic expert. 

 

SJH:   Traffic expert, thank you. 5 

 

MS DINGWALL:   And there is just the possibility at this stage that we could 

also have a landscape expert with respect to the open space temporary 

activities. 

 10 

SJH:   Thank you. 

 

MR VENEMA:   Sir, I am not intending to call an expert witness, but will be 

intending as a layperson to provide evidence. 

 15 

SJH:   So you will give evidence yourself? 

 

MR VENEMA:   Yes. 

 

SJH:   Thank you.  20 

 

MS McLEOD:   Sir, Transpower will be calling a planner only. 

 

SJH:   Thank you, Ms McLeod. 

 25 

MR MILLAR:  Sir, the Polytechnic will be calling a planner. 

 

SJH:   Thank you. 

 

MR JOLL:   Sir, Christ’s College, in relation to the waterways setback matter 30 

will be calling a planner and a college rep, in relation to the scope issue 

that was raised on Tuesday, legal counsel will be filing a response to 

the scope question by tomorrow. 

 

SJH:   Thank you. 35 

 

MR JOLL:   Top Maple Investments will be calling a planner in relation to the 

scheduling of accommodation, Bunnings Limited and Kiwi Property 

Holdings Limited will be jointly calling a planner and urban designer 

around the signage and outdoor lighting provisions. 40 

 

SJH:  Thank you. 

 

MS PAYNE:   Vanessa Payne, and I will be giving my own evidence. 

 45 

SJH:   Thank you. 
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MR SUGRUE:  John Sugrue, 2567, submitter, and I will just be speaking on 

my own behalf. 

 

SJH:   As evidence or a submission, Mr Sugrue? 5 

 

MR SUGRUE:   Just submission. 

 

SJH:   Thank you. 

 10 

MR MORA:   Mike Mora, the Riccarton Wigram Community Board and the 

Riccarton Bush Trust will not be calling expert evidence on this one, 

but we will be making submissions. 

 

SJH:   Thank you, Mr Mora. 15 

 

MR MORA:   Thank you. 

 

SJH:   Now, the other submitters at the back row where you have just been, are 

they calling evidence or just submitting? 20 

 

MR DUNCAN:   Garden City Helicopters, so submitting as far as I am 

concerned at the moment. 

 

  [10.35 am] 25 

 

SJH:   Thank you. 

 

MR BALLANTYNE:   Sir, Keith Ballantyne from the Papanui Club, we will 

just be making submissions.  30 

 

SJH:   Thank you. 

 

MS McGETTIGAN:   Canterbury District Health Board will have a medical 

officer of health and a noise expert. 35 

 

SJH:   Thank you. 

 

MS BLAIR:   Sir, the Oil Companies will be calling planning evidence and 

may call urban design evidence, thank you. 40 

 

SJH:   Thank you. Anyone else? 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Ms McGettigan, could you just stand again, and just 

putting the same question, does the Canterbury District Health Board 45 
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intend to call noise expert evidence in regard to the airport or other 

issues? 

 

MS McGETTIGAN:   I am sorry, sir, I am not sure, but I can come back to you 

on that one today. 5 

 

SJH:  Well, you need to do so by close of business. I mean, we have raised this 

issue with the health board before that you really need to know these 

things when you come along. 

 10 

MS McGETTIGAN:   Okay, sir. 

 

SJH:   We have had this issue at other pre-hearings and hearings. It is not your 

fault, I know, but they really should be represented by legal counsel. 

 15 

MS McGETTIGAN:   Okay, thank you, sir. 

 

SJH:   All right, thank you. Mr Marra, when it comes to expert conferencing 

you are in fact the only expert in your area, so there’s no conferencing 

to take place, but you can give evidence as an expert in the course of 20 

the hearing.  

 

MR MARRA:   Yes, thank you, your Honour. 

 

SJH:   Thank you. Expert conferencing will take place on 3-4 December. I 25 

think, Ms Scott, your delineation of experts at 17 covers all the areas 

that it needs to be addressed and timetabled for? 

 

MS SCOTT:   Yes, sir, based on my notes they do as well, I’m happy with that. 

 30 

SJH:   Yes, thank you, and parties will need to liaise with the Secretariat as to 

the exact timing of the various areas of expertise and the conferencing 

around that. The red line version of the proposal, the updated version, 

26 November, Ms Scott? 

  35 

MS SCOTT:   Thank you, sir. 

 

SJH:   Council’s evidence, 4 February 2016. Submitter evidence, 17 February 

2016. Any rebuttal evidence by 25 February 2016. As most parties will 

now be aware under the order in Council you will require leave of the 40 

Panel to cross-examine, any such leave applications need to be filed by 

1 March 2016. Our normal limit on cross-examination is 10 minutes, 

that’s the default position. If any party feels they need longer than that 

to cross-examine they are free to apply to the Panel for an extension of 

time, which we have dealt with and granted on a number of occasions 45 

previously. 
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 The pre-circulation of evidence, if you wish to serve using the website, 

is required by 3.00 pm on the due date. Just to make it plain, however, 

even if that is done the obligation for service remains on submitters and 

does not shift to the Secretariat. If there are any late documents, again 5 

you require leave, so you should file a leave application along with any 

late documents giving the reason for the lateness. 

 

 As with all other hearings the evidence will be pre-read. We expect 

from lay and expert witnesses a highlights package, which is limited 10 

normally to 10 minutes. If parties feel they need longer than that for the 

witness to properly put their case, again an application for leave for a 

longer period can be made and, as in the past, will likely be granted.  

Expert witnesses do not need to repeat evidence they’ve given at 

previous hearings, they can simply cross-reference it. 15 

 

 Now, the other thing we would urge amongst submitters and those 

represented by counsel is that if you can share experts and reduce the 

overall number of witnesses, that would be greatly appreciated by the 

Panel, it leads to a great deal of efficiency and we want to avoid 20 

evidence that simply repeats itself.  

 

 Now there are some scope challenges, is that correct, Ms Scott? 

 

  [10.40 am] 25 

 

MS SCOTT:   Yes, sir.  They are set out in the memorandum, one of them has 

already been addressed, the Hands Off Hagley application has already 

been filed in response to - - - 

 30 

SJH:   And that’s been, yeah. 

 

MS SCOTT:   It would seem sensible that the same approach is taken with 

these submissions as well. 

 35 

SJH:   All right, well any parties that the Council state are out of scope in their 

memorandum of 22 October have five days to file a memorandum 

setting out why they believe they are in scope and the Council will 

have three days to, they are both business days, to respond to that. 

 40 

MS ROBINSON:   Sir, can I seek clarification on that issue please?  At 

paragraph 15 the Commodore Airport Hotel is identified as being out 

of scope, that simple decision was made simply because the Guest 

Accommodation Zone was being pushed to Stage 3, essentially is a 

holding position in case the Guest Accommodation Zone is removed 45 
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and replaced with the scheduled activity which was addressed in our 

submission on Stage 2.   

 

 I am just clarifying if you would like a memorandum to that effect or 

we can essentially take the Stage 2 submission as covering it and 5 

disregard the Stage 3 submission. 

 

SJH:   Well, it should be transferred across, Ms Scott, should it not? 

 

MS SCOTT:   Yes, the Stage 2 submission does come across. 10 

 

SJH:   We will simply order that that be transferred across to this hearing. 

 

MS ROBINSON:   Thank you, sir. 

 15 

SJH:   Legal submissions, we usually expect brief legal openings, if they are 

longer than three pages, either openings or closings, we need a contents 

page.  They may be in writing, if parties wish to speak to their legal 

openings they need to give the Panel three workings days, prior to the 

hearing, notice of that.  Once the evidence is complete we expect more 20 

fulsome closing legal submissions.   

 

 As with all other hearings parties may file those in writing but they also 

have the right, if they wish to do so, to attend and personally present 

those closing legal submissions.  We will deal with the timetable for 25 

the filing of any closing legal submissions when we get towards the end 

of the hearing.  The hearing predicted dates at the moment are 11, 14-

16 and 18 of March.   

 

 Again, can I urge any submitters having any uncertainties to speak to 30 

the Friend of the Submitter before they close. Just finally, any conflict 

matters relating to the Panel are posted online, for the sake of 

completeness I will record that I have recused myself for matters 

dealing with Hagley Park and the Airport. 

 35 

 Once we have heard from you about your nomination of a witness on 

noise, Ms Scott, the Panel, absent me, will make a decision as to what 

course we will take in relation to that. 

 

MS SCOTT:   Thank you, sir. 40 

 

SJH:   All right, do you have anything, Ms Scott? 

 

MS SCOTT:   No, that is all, thank you, sir. 

 45 

SJH:   Mr Carranceja? 
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MR CARRANCEJA:   Sir, just a couple of things briefly, sir, and this is really 

a bit of foreshadowing. There is a Strategic Directions objective 

relating to infrastructure and that there is a note in this Hearing Panel’s 

decision sir that matters relating to airport noise and bird strike on that 5 

Strategic Directions objective are still matters to be potentially 

considered.  That is a matter that should be brought into this hearing 

because it is relevant to the airport noise matters being raised. 

 

SJH:   Well, they will be considered but whether we can amend in this hearing 10 

or whether we would need to renotify, it is matter we will have to 

determine after we have heard those submissions. 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Yes, sir, and the second matter is there a submission 

point by the Crown relating to a Freshwater Strategic Directions 15 

objective.  I have previously signalled it is as a matter to be heard as 

part of Natural and Cultural Heritage proposal, sir, it should also be 

heard here, sir, because this proposal is dealing with waterway setback, 

sir. 

 20 

SJH:   Well, you will be calling the same evidence in relation to it so we note 

that and we expect you to call evidence and submit on it, 

Mr Carranceja. 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Yes, sir. 25 

 

SJH:   Thank you. 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Thank you, sir. 

 30 

SJH:   Any other counsel have any issues they wish to raise?  Any submitters 

or planners that are appearing representing clients this morning?  All 

right, thank you all very much and again I urge you to, the lay 

submitters, if you have any feeling of confusion at all because we know 

this is a daunting process for you with lots of people and lots of lawyers 35 

and such like, please speak to the Friend of Submitter before you leave 

this morning. 

 

MR VENEMA:   Sir? 

 40 

SJH:   Just wait for the microphone. 

 

  [10.45 am] 

 

MR VENEMA:   Gerrit Venema, submitter 2091, I did have an item before the 45 

Panel concerning a review of information concerning the engine testing 
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contours and it deals with the conflict of interest of expert witnesses 

and so on in the background. Just wondering if I was able to get some 

direction on that? 

 

SJH:   Well, we have already indicated our concerns around that conflict, the 5 

Council had indicated they maybe calling a witness, a completely 

different witness from a different firm which would take away the 

conflict, does that not deal with your concern? 

 

MR VENEMA:   Not entirely, sir.  The report that has come through to 10 

substantiate these contour lines has some problems and even in this 

case that it has not really had time to be reviewed to bring up any issues 

as we proceed along whether that is going to substantiate what we have 

before us on the proposed plan.  Because of the timeline I was hoping 

to, and other submitters, to get a review done of this report and I 15 

believe the Council is amiable to this and have got resources to do that. 

 

SJH:   Well, that is not something that we have the power to order 

unfortunately. We hear the evidence and test it on the evidence and you 

can challenge that evidence, call your own experts, cross-examine on it 20 

and then we have to determine it, but if the Council has made a group 

of submitters some offer on that, that is between you and the Council, it 

is not part of our hearings process. Can you assist on that, Ms Scott, 

because a number of submitters have raised this issue that the Council 

are going to facilitate the answer to a number of questions by the 25 

Airport. 

 

MS SCOTT:   Yes, I have seen copies of these, the memoranda this morning 

suggesting this independent review and I have also seen the report that 

has been circulated, provided by the Airport, and circulated by a 30 

Council officer.  The Council’s position and my instructions are that 

this needs to be tested on the evidence.  We have now had confirmation 

that submitters are calling acoustic experts, so there will be a 

conferencing session where the evidence will be tested and then of 

course tested before the Hearing Panel, and that, in the Council’s view, 35 

is the appropriate way for this to move forward. 

 

SJH:   All right, do you understand that answer? 

 

MR VENEMA:   Yes, sir, thank you. 40 

 

SJH:   All right, does that care of – well, it probably does not answer all of your 

concerns but you have the ability to challenge the evidence in a proper 

manner at the hearing and to call your own evidence as individuals or 

as a group of submitters. 45 
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MS APPLEYARD:   I may be able to assist, we are hearing some lay 

submitters and also Mr Marra wanting to question or put questions to 

effectively a noise expert, I will be asking Mr Day to attend the 

mediation as opposed to expert conferencing. 

 5 

SJH:   Well, as well as expert conferencing. 

 

MS APPLEYARD:   Yes, as well as, so there will be a forum for questions to 

be asked, so we are intending on and we would be also happy to deal 

with the issue of noise contours and including engine testing at a 10 

dedicated mediation if we could find another day somewhere.  We 

would be happy for that as well. We can facilitate having as many 

experts available as parties wish to have available to ask questions of, 

so I am happy to - - - 

 15 

SJH:   All right, well, thank you for that.  I mean I can easily say it, and it is a 

problem for the Secretariat, but I will say it, that we will find a separate 

day to mediate on that topic which all submitters relating to airport 

noise can attend and Mr Day can be there and they can question him 

and such like on that occasion.  20 

 

MR LAWRY:   Just one further issue of clarification. I know it was filed only a 

couple of days ago so that is not a lot of time for anyone to reply to it, 

but directions from the Panel have been requested from a number of 

submitters including myself, what timeline do you think before some 25 

directions? 

 

SJH:   What directions that have not been made are you specifically seeking 

that are within our jurisdiction, Mr Lawry? 

 30 

MR LAWRY:   One of them was the legal impact in relation to the findings for 

PC84 on this process. 

 

SJH:   It is a matter you can submit on, you have a complete right to make 

submissions to us on other legal matters, we cannot rule on this at this 35 

stage. 

 

MR LAWRY:   Do you have my documents yet? 

 

SJH:   We go through the hearing process and hear the legal submissions from 40 

other parties, and you if you wish to give them, and then we make a 

decision.  What you are asking us is to make decisions before we get to 

the hearing. 

 

  [10.50 am] 45 
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MR LAWRY:   Okay, well, I will just expect your reply from that request for 

direction at some point.  I am merely asking for a reply on each of the 

directions I requested in the process. 

 

SJH:   Do you want to respond, Ms Scott? 5 

 

MS SCOTT:   Yes, sir, I think it could be useful to clarify the reference to Plan 

Change 84, Plan Change 84 has recently been appealed to the 

Environment Court and the appeal has been withdrawn.  That is a Plan 

Change that is a separate process to the order in Council review and as 10 

it is going through that separate process it is deemed to become part of 

the Replacement District Plan, so the Hearings Panel will not be 

making a decision on the Special Purpose Airport Zone, that is an 

entirely separate process, just to clarify that, sir. 

 15 

SJH:   All right, Mr Lawry, if you stand up we will go through it in formal 

mediation process.  You have heard what is said, we are going to set 

aside a special day for that with a facilitator appointed by the 

Secretariat.  We have already dealt with that.  Do you have anything 

else to ask on that one? 20 

 

MR LAWRY:   I understood the process was that we could seek directions and 

that - - - 

 

SJH:   We are trying to deal with your directions, this is the direction one you 25 

sought. 

 

MR LAWRY:   Okay. 

 

SJH:   I have already dealt with the fact that we must hear evidence.  We 30 

cannot force people to answer questions in that, but in any event the 

expert on sound is prepared to attend separate mediation on this issue. 

 

MR LAWRY:   Yes, I do. 

 35 

SJH:   We have already done that.  We have already directed that. 

 

MR LAWRY:   Okay. 

 

SJH:   Number two, evidence timelines, the same evidence timelines apply to 40 

submitters as everybody else.  Expert witness evidence, we have 

already dealt with your concerns there, we will make available facilities 

both for conferencing and for evidence so that they can join by video 

link.  We have dealt with that, have we not? 

 45 

MR LAWRY:   You have. 
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SJH:   Thank you.  It is a matter for you at the hearing to establish your expert 

investigative witness and we will deal with the admissibility and 

otherwise of your evidence at the hearing, as I said to you. 

 5 

 The other matter under five, that is a matter for the hearing after we 

hear the evidence and determination by the Panel.  The impact of the 

New Zealand Standards Best Practice is a matter for the Panel to 

consider in its course of the hearing and will be taken into account as 

part of the evidence.   10 

 

 Number seven, again, we have got to hear it and decide it on the 

evidence in front of us.  Number eight, I have dealt with, you can 

submit on the impact of Plan Change 84 and any findings in relation to 

that.  Competitive advantage issues, that is a matter for hearing, you 15 

can call evidence and give evidence yourself in relation to that and we 

will rule on it and the same with the bird strike – they are all matters of 

substance for the hearing, Mr Lawry. 

 

MR LAWRY:   Thank you for the clarification, thank you. 20 

 

SJH:   Does anyone else have any queries?  Thank you, we will retire. 

 

MS SCOTT:   Thank you, sir. 

 25 

ADJOURNED  [10.54 am]  


